
            
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Bob Best                   Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner           Councilman Jaime Petralanda 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, August 10, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Invocation: Mayor Garcia 
 

Salute to the Flag: Audience Participation  
 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 
 A) Presentation of Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to Jerry Balester, Jr. in 
Recognition of 24 Years of Dedicated Service to the City of Miami Springs 
 
 B) Presentation of Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to Harry Mayer in 
Recognition of 26 Years of Dedicated Service to the City of Miami Springs 
 
 C) Recognizing the Little Lightning Softball Team 
 
 D) Presentation by Jose Fuentes, Becker & Poliakoff 
 
4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the 
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) June 22, 2015 – Regular Meeting 
B) July 30, 2015 – Special Meeting 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  
  
 A) Board of Adjustment – Approval of Actions Taken at their Meeting of August 4, 
2015 Subject to the 10-day Appeal Period 

 
7. Public Hearings: None 
   
 



8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted)  
  
 A) Approval of City Attorney’s Invoice for July 2015 in the Amount of $12,224.25  
 
 B) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an expenditure to 
Royal Rent-a-car Systems of Florida, the lowest responsible quote of $17,088.00 for the monthly 
rental of two vehicles (for a twelve-month period), as these funds qualify for expenditure from the 
Police Law Enforcement Trust Fund, as funds were approved in the FY 14/15 Budget pursuant to 
Section 31.11 (C)(2) of the City Code 
 
 C) Recommendation by Public Works that Council waive the competitive bid process 
and approve an expenditure to Atkins, who has been involved with all of our stormwater projects 
outlined within our master plan since inception in 2001, in an amount to exceed $6,000.00 for 
Oakwood and Lee Drive drainage project inspections during construction phase and to prepare 
the final as-built drawings, as funds are available in the stormwater account pursuant to Section 
31.11(E)(6)(g) of the City Code 
 
 D) Recommendation by Public Works that Council authorize the issuance of a 
Purchase Order to Metro Express, utilizing the City of Miami Gardens Bid #14-15-008, in an 
amount not to exceed $85,754.00, as funds are available in the stormwater account for the 
Oakwood and Lee Drive drainage improvement and restoration project to alleviate the flooding 
area which includes Stafford Park, pursuant to Section 31.11(E)(5) of the City Code 
 
 E) Recommendation by the Elderly Services Department that Council award City Bid 
#04-14/15 to Greater Miami Caterers, Inc., the only responsible bidder, in an amount not to 
exceed $167,146.00, for Catering Services for the City of Miami Springs Senior Center’s Nutrition 
Programs for the Elderly as funds are to be approved in the FY 15/16 Budget, pursuant to 
Section 31.11 (E)(1) of the City Code 
 
 F) Recommendation by Finance-Professional Services that Council award City RFP 
#05-14/15 to First Vehicle Services, the lowest responsible bidder, in an amount not to exceed 
$18,262.80 monthly ($219,153.63 annually), for fleet services maintenance on all citywide 
vehicles, equipment and machinery, as funds are to be approved in the FY 15/16 Budget, 
pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(1) of the City Code 
 
 G) Recommendation by Golf that Council authorize the issuance of a Purchase Order 
to Harrell’s, utilizing Miami Dade County contract # 9020-1/19, on an "as needed basis" in the 
amount of $4,000.00,  for liquid fertilizer as funds were approved in the FY14/15 Budget, 
pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
B) Recommendation by Public Works that Council authorize the issuance of a Change 

order to the previously awarded contract under the City's RFP #03-14/15 to Z Roofing for 
replacing gypsum around the parapet wall, raising the electrical units and removing and replacing 
the electrical vents on the City Hall roof, in an amount not to exceed $8,400.00, coming from the 
designated fund balance, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E) (1) of the City Code 

 



10. New Business:  
  
 A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Providing For The Fourth Budget Amendment To The FY 2014-2015 Budget; By Recording The 
Expenditure For The Miami Springs Police Department Information Technology Upgrade In The 
Law Enforcement Trust Fund Of The Special Revenue And Capital Projects Budget; Dividing The 
Expenditure For A New Backhoe Between The Stormwater Fund Of The General Fund Budget 
And The Road And Transportation Fund Of The Special Revenue And Capital Projects Budget; 
Delineating The Expenditures For A Golf Course Awning, City Roof Replacement Project, And 
Supplemental Funding For Programs For Senior Citizens In The Golf Course Operations, Public 
Works, And Transfer Funds Of The General Fund Budget; Acknowledging The Expenditures For 
The Golf Course Awning And Roof Replacement Project From The City’s Designated Fund 
Balance And Recording The Supplemental Expenditure For Senior Citizen Programs In The 
Senior Center Operations Funds Of The Special Revenue And Capital Projects Fund; Providing 
Intent; Specifying Compliance With Budgetary Processes And Procedures; Effective Date 
 
 B)  Recommendation by Recreation that Council approve an expenditure to Superior 
Park System, Inc. the lowest responsible quote, in an amount not to exceed $27,332.00, for the 
repairs and resurface of tennis courts as funds were designated by Council in the designated 
fund balance for FY 14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11 (C)(2) of the City Code (Deferred 
from June 22, 2015 Council Meeting) 
 
 C) Consideration of approval of similar permitted business use for a request made by 
Management Resources College at 700 S. Royal Poinciana Boulevard 
 
 D) Approval of Signal Outdoor Advertising, LLC Bus Shelter Installation, Advertising, 
and Maintenance Agreement 
  
 E) Recommendation by Staff that Council award City RFP #06-14/15 to Neighborhood 
Health Partners (NHP), the lowest responsible bidder, in the amount of $994,610.00, as the City’s 
annual premium for group medical coverage for employees and their dependents based on the 
number of current employees, with an effective date of October 1st, 2015 to September 30, 2016, 
as funds are currently being budgeted in the FY 15/16 Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(1) 
of the City Code 
 
 F) Optimist Club request for a partial 11 hour Circle closing and waiver of associated 
Police and Public Works fees for both this fiscal year (Sep 19th) and next fiscal year budget 
   
11. Other Business:  
  
 A) FY2014-2015 3rd Quarter Budget Status Report (Unaudited) 
  
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 



13. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please visit www.miamisprings-fl.gov for current meeting schedule or follow us on             Twitter @MIAMISPRINGSFL 
******************************************************************************************************* 
Live streaming video of this meeting is available at http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at (305) 805-5006, download the complete agenda packet from 
www.miamisprings-fl.gov or view the materials at City Hall during regular business hours. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114, the City Council provides the public with a reasonable opportunity to be heard on all matters. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of the proceedings and for such 

purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is made (F. S. 286.0105), all of which the City does not provide. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the 

City Clerk, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  Telephone: (305) 805-5006, no later than (7) days prior to the proceeding. 
 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, all persons, firms or 

corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or 
decision of the City Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or reviewed 
by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose 

and shall state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has employed said 
registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been employed to lobby.  A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the 

Office of the City Clerk. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/




 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, June 22, 2015 7:00 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 8:05 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
Chief of Police Armando A. Guzman 
Deputy City Clerk Elora R. Sakal 
 
2. Invocation: Councilman Petralanda 
 

Salute to the Flag: The audience participated in the Pledge of Allegiance and 
Salute to the Flag 
 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 

A) Yard of the Month – July 2015 – 1251 Quail Avenue – Odalys Martin 
 
Ms. Martin was not present to accept the award. 
 

B) Promotion of Sgt. Jimmy E. Deal to the rank of Lieutenant of Police 
 
Chief of Police Armando Guzman presented Sgt. Jimmy Deal with his promotion to the 
rank of Lieutenant of Police. 
 
Lieutenant Jimmy Deal thanked Chief Guzman, the City Council, and the Administration. 
He thanked his friends and family. 
 
4. Open Forum:  
 
Elaine Martin of 120 Sunset Way commented that she will be the next event Chair for the 
Relay for Life of Miami Springs and Virginia Gardens. Being a two time cancer survivor 
herself, this is a cause that is near and dear to her heart. She thanked Mayor, Council, 
Administration, the Police Chief and Police Officers, Public Works staff, and the entire 



 
 2 

community of Miami Springs and Virginia Gardens for their support at the Relay event a 
couple of months ago. She also thanked the Curtiss Mansion Inc. for allowing her to hold 
the luminary ceremony at the Curtiss Mansion. She is committed to keeping the lines of 
communication open. She is looking for people to join the ranks of their volunteer 
leadership team. She mentioned a discussion she had with the City Manager in regards to 
a special fundraiser. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) June 8, 2015 – Regular Meeting 

 
Councilman Bain moved to approve.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, 
which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Best, 
Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None at this time. 

 
7. Public Hearings: None. 

 
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted)  
 
 A)  Recommendation by Police Department that Council authorize the issuance 
of a purchase order to Patterson Pope Space Saver, utilizing Florida State Contract 
#56121000-15-1, in an amount not to exceed $13,789.90 for the purchase of a new 
Evidence Locker System, as funds are available in the FY 14/15 Budget, pursuant to 
Section 31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 
 B) Recommendation by Golf that Council authorize the issuance of a purchase 
order to Howard’s Fertilizer & Chemical, utilizing Town of Davie Bid #B-14-25, on an “as 
needed basis” in the amount of $11,000.00, for custom pre-emergent fertilizer blends as 
funds were approved in the FY 14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(5) of the City 
Code 
 C)  Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an expenditure to Acushnet, 
as a sole source provider, on an “as needed basis” in the amount of $10,000.00, for golf 
merchandise in our golf shop at the clubhouse as funds were approved in the FY 14/15 
Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code 
 
 D) Recommendation by Finance that Council approve an expenditure to Woodys 
West End Tavern in the amount of $990.00, the lowest of three quotes, for the May 29th 
Police Appreciation Dinner as funds were approved in the FY 14/15 Budget 
  
Vice Mayor Best moved to approve.  Councilwoman Buckner seconded the motion, 
which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Best, 
Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 
 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 



 
 3 

 
There were no appointments at this time. 

 
B) Appointment of five members to the Ad Hoc Art in Public Places Committee 

for the Aquatic Facility. All Committee members and meetings shall comply 
with the Sunshine Law. 

 
Councilman Petralanda appointed Waldo Creador to the Ad Hoc Art in Public Places 
Committee. 
 
Vice Mayor Best appointed former Board member Kathy Fleischman to the Ad Hoc Art in 
Public Places Committee. 
 
10. New Business:  
  
A) Approval of proposed letter of intent with Crown Castle for an extension of the 
existing cell tower lease agreement in Hook Square 
 
Councilwoman Buckner moved to approve.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the 
motion.  
 
City Attorney Seiden this extension basically creates an additional 4 option periods so the 
actual lease as amended will not expire until 2041. In addition, when the newest of the 4 
periods begin, the City will be receiving a one-time 10% additional increase in addition to 
the 4% annual increase that the City always receives. When the lease extension is signed, 
the City will be receiving an additional $15,000. 
 
Councilman Petralanda questioned if it would be better to wait on signing the contract to 
see if the City can receive a better deal and City Attorney Seiden replied that it can be 
negotiated but that this was a good deal. 
 
The motion carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Best, 
Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 B)  Approval of the Second Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for 
County Solid Waste Management System between Miami-Dade County and Miami Springs 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the 
motion. The motion carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice 
Mayor Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 C) Recommendation by Recreation that Council approve an expenditure to 
Superior Park System, Inc. the lowest responsible quote, in an amount not to exceed 
$27,332.00, for the repairs and resurface of tennis courts as funds were designated by 
Council in the designated fund balance for FY 14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11 
(C)(2) of the City Code 
 
Councilwoman Buckner asked when the last time that the courts were resurfaced and 
Recreation Director Luna replied that it was resurfaced approximately two years ago and 



 
 4 

he saw cracking within three months. 
 
Councilwoman Buckner asked if there was an issue with stability of that area and 
Recreation Director Luna replied that is a question that he cannot answer and would 
probably have to be answered by an engineer. 
 
Vice Mayor Best said that one day the City will need to start exploring the moving of the 
tennis courts to another location. It seems appropriate that the tennis courts be with the 
golf course. He understands that the City is going into the budget and they are not in any 
position to be discussing a project of this magnitude but it is something that needs to be 
thought of down the road. 
 
City Manager Gorland explained that this discussion was brought up the last time this item 
came before Council and he was directed to get an estimate. He met with two different 
firms at the golf course to discuss the estimate of 5 official size tennis courts, restrooms, a 
concession stand and screening. The cost was well in excess of between $500,000 and 
$600,000. This estimate was done approximately 6 years ago. He said he could get 
another estimate if Council would like. 
 
Vice Mayor Bain said that he would like to get a new estimate. 
 
Recreation Director Luna explained that if the courts start to crack little by little it is not in 
bad situation as far as safety is concerned. It is at the stage where it is beginning to crack 
and come up which is becoming not only an aesthetic issue but a safety issue. 
 
Councilman Bain asked if the space qualifies for what the programs do and Recreation 
Director Luna replied affirmatively. 
 
Councilman Bain questioned the thought of raising the courts approximately 6 inches. It 
may be a less expensive option that the City can afford to do. He would propose to get 
more information on his suggestion. 
 
Councilwoman Buckner asked if something could be done with the canal next to the courts 
to help with drainage. 
 
City Manager Gorland stated that all of Miami Springs is 4 feet above sea level. The level 
of the water is controlled by South Florida Water Management and when they lower and 
raise the water that is what causes all of the damage underneath the courts. 
 
Mayor Garcia asked that the City consult with the Golf Director and Tennis Director to see 
what type of an impact it could have on the golf course and what the pros and cons are for 
moving it to the golf course or keeping it where it is. 
 
Councilman Bain also would like to find out from the Tennis Director if the space he has 
now is sufficient because if that is the case, there is no need to expand in a new location if 
it is not needed. 
 
By consensus, Council would like to wait on resurfacing the tennis courts for one 
month to get more information and costs for relocating the tennis courts to the golf 
course and raising the tennis courts in their current location. 
 
 D) Recommendation by Finance that Council authorize the execution of a one 
year contract beginning July 1, 2015 with Southern Waste Systems (SWS) with an option 
to renew three additional one year terms for garbage collection and disposal services 



 
 5 

citywide utilizing Miami-Dade County contract #6938-2/22 
 
City Attorney Seiden explained that Council can agree to extend this to the beginning of the 
fiscal year or to go with the County. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve item 10D as specified in the agenda.  Vice Mayor 
Best seconded the motion. The motion carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman 
Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 E) Recommendation by Elderly Services that Council approve an expenditure in 
the amount of $8,400.00, to fund the Tai Chi and Yoga/Fitness workout programs from July 
1 thru September 30, 2015 as funds were designated by Council in their fund balance 
designations for FY2015 was funded with LSP Grant that ended June 30, 2015 
 
Vice Mayor Best moved to approve.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the 
motion. The motion carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice 
Mayor Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
  
 F) Recommendation by Elderly Services that Council approve an expenditure in 
the amount of $3,500.00 to fund Home Delivered Weekend Meals from July 1 thru 
September 30, 2015, using funds from General fund balance was funded with LSP Grant 
that ended June 30, 2015 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the 
motion. The motion carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice 
Mayor Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 G) Recommendation by Elderly Services that Council authorize a two month 
extension for the period of August 1 – September 30, 2015 of our current food catering 
subcontractor (in order to insure the continued provision of Home Delivered and 
Congregate Meals until a new subcontract can be executed) with Greater Miami Caterers, 
Inc., using Older Americans Act and Nutrition Services Incentive Program funding, as well 
as Local Services Program funding if awarded. Total cost for 2 months is $37,000 and 
covers the overall meal program 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve.  Vice Mayor Best seconded the motion. The 
motion carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Best, 
Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 
  
 H) Councilwoman Buckner’s request for City Reimbursement to her in the 
amount of $1,750.00 for the Good Government Initiative Leaders of Excellence Class V, to 
be paid out of Council’s Training and Education account 
 
Vice Mayor Best moved to approve. Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion. 
 
Councilman Bain would like for future items such as this to come before Council so that 
they are aware of what is being spent. He feels that this kind of expenditure should be 



 
 6 

brought before Council for review. 
 
Mayor Garcia clarified that Councilwoman Buckner has not gone on the trip yet and that is 
why this item is on the agenda. 
 
Councilman Bain said that he misunderstood because the item says reimbursement. When 
you are reimbursing someone, it is because the money was already spent. He feels that 
$1,750 is a lot of money. 
 
Councilwoman Buckner explained that it is a 6 month training course. 
 
To answer Mayor Garcia’s question, Mr. Alonso said that the course covers tuition, all 
materials, instructors, speakers, meals, lodging for two retreat weekends and 
transportation on field trips. 
 
Mayor Garcia would like to get a report back on what the process was and what was done 
from Councilwoman Buckner. 
 
To answer Mayor Garcia’s question, Mr. Alonso said that the classes begin at the end of 
August and go through mid-November. 
 
The motion carried 4-1 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Best, 
Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes and 
Councilman Bain voting No. 
 
 I) Authorization for the execution of the settlement agreement between Curtiss 
Mansion, Inc. and R.J. Heisenbottle Architects, P.A., Douglas Wood Associates, Inc. and 
Carivon Constrution Company for the repair project at the Curtiss Mansion 
 
The motion for this item was made with item 10J. 
 
 J) Authorization for the execution of the multi-party agreement for the design & 
construction of the repairs to the Curtiss Mansion 
 
City Attorney Seiden explained that as Council may be aware, the Curtiss Mansion has 
been experiencing warranty issues involving the timbers. Some have been replaced but 
major repairs need to be done in the same nature. The City has been working with the 
architect, engineer, contractor and the suppliers to hammer out two agreements; the 
settlement agreement in which they acknowledge their responsibility towards doing the 
warranty and maintenance work that are required to be done and the multi-party 
agreement which delineates how it is going to be done. The work will start on August 17th 
and be concluded before September 21st. 
 
Councilwoman Buckner moved to approve items 10I and 10J.  Vice Mayor Best 
seconded the motion. The motion carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman 
Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 7 

11. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney  
 
City Attorney Seiden reported that the City received two orders from ATS. In the class 
action lawsuit involving ATS, the judge in the case dismissed the Florida Department of 
Revenue out of the case since they really were nothing but a pass through. They were 
directed to receive the monies that were to go to the State of Florida and then they were 
directed by the State of Florida where to send the monies. The judge felt that they did not 
have a big enough impact of the process to be included as a defendant and were 
dismissed.  
 
City Attorney Seiden previously reported on an issue in the armor of the plaintiffs because 
23 of the cities did not have a plaintiff from the locale who would actually be a party plaintiff 
in the action and that has been corrected. They have gotten 23 out of the 25 and have 
notified the court today that they have met the burden within the 30 days. 
 

B) City Manager 
 
City Manager Gorland reminded everyone that they are heading into the July “quiet period”. 
There will be no meetings in July except for the Special meeting on July 30th at 5:01 p.m. to 
set the millage cap. The Wall of Fame event will take place on July 3rd for Jim Caudle at 
the Community Center. There will be a classic car show event on the circle on July 3rd. He 
wanted to thank Omar and Patti in advance for their hard work on putting the July 4th 
events together. He wished everyone a Happy 4th of July. 
  

C) City Council 
 
Councilman Petralanda thanked everyone who attended the meeting tonight. He also 
thanked Jo Ellen for giving a tour of the Curtiss Mansion to the Miami-Dade Coalition for 
Community Education Board members. 
 
Councilwoman Buckner thanked everyone who attended the meeting. She gave a friendly 
reminder to not spray the Police Officers during the 4th of July parade since they have 
electronic equipment on them. 
 
Councilman Bain reported that his son won a fishing tournament in the Keys this weekend. 
The boat caught a 42.4 pound dolphin.  
 
Vice Mayor Bain wished everyone a safe 4th of July.  
 
Mayor Garcia wished everyone a happy 4th of July. On Saturday, June 27th he will be at 
Starlight Dance Studio where a fundraiser will be hosted for mission hope. Everyone is 
invited to come by. It is to help a 7 year old girl reach her goal of getting 100 purple bags 
filled of personal hygiene items and will be given to the Miami Rescue Mission. He 
congratulated Lieutenant Jimmy Deal on being promoted.  
 
13. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 9:43 p.m. 
 
 
 
 



 
 8 

 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 22nd day of June, 2015. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 

Special Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, July 30, 2015 5:01 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 5:04 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
 
2. Invocation: Vice Mayor Best 

 
Salute to the Flag: The audience participated. 

 
3. Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Setting The Tentative Operating Millage Levy For Fiscal Year 2015-2016; Setting Time, 
Date And Place For Public Hearings On The Proposed 2015-2016 Budget And Tentative 
Millage Rate 
 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read the resolution in its entirety. 
 
Vice Mayor Best moved to adopt the resolution. Councilman Petralanda seconded 
the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Best, Councilmen Bain, Buckner, Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
4. Resolution – A Resolution  Of  The  City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs, 
Authorizing The Approval Of The Second Amended And Restated Interlocal Agreement 
Between Miami-Dade County And Contract Cities For Use Of The County Solid Waste 
Management System; Authorizing  The  City  Manager To Execute The  Agreement;  And 
Providing  For An Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read the title of the resolution. 
 
 



 
 2 

Councilman Petralanda moved to adopt the resolution. Councilwoman Buckner 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Best, Councilmen Bain, Buckner, Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting 
Yes. 
 
5. Consent Agenda –  
 
 A) Approval of City Attorney’s Invoice for June 2015 in the Amount of 
$13,493.25  
 
Vice Mayor Best moved to approve the item. Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, 
which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Best, Councilmen 
Bain, Buckner, Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
6. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 5:15 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 10th day of August, 2015. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



 

 

 
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 
 
The Board of Adjustment met in Regular Session at 7:00 p.m., on Monday, August 4, 
2015 in the Council Chambers at City Hall. 
 
 
1) Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:05 p.m.    
 
The following were present: Chairman Manuel Pérez-Vichot  
     Vice Chair Ernie Aloma 

Juan Molina 
     Bill Tallman 
     Bob Calvert 
 
Also present:    City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
     Planning and Zoning Director Chris Heid 
     Board Secretary Elora R. Sakal 
 
 
2)  Approval of Minutes 
 
Minutes of the April 6, 2015 meeting were approved as written. 
 
Board member Calvert moved to approve the minutes.  Board member Molina 
seconded the motion which was carried unanimously on voice vote. 
 
 
3) New Business:  
 
Board Secretary Sakal swore in the City Planner, the applicants or representatives of 
the applicants who were going to testify should the Board have any questions. 
 
A) Case # 09-V-15 
 MIGUEL GARCIA 
 183 SOUTH DRIVE 
 Zoning: R-1B 
 Lot Size: 75 ft. X 120 ft. 
  
Applicant is seeking a variance from Section 150-103 to continue an existing non-
conforming six foot tall fence located in the front yard. 
 
Planning and Zoning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. 



 

Minutes – Board of Adjustment  Tuesday, August 4, 2015 2 

 
City Attorney Seiden noticed a discrepancy on the site plan and wanted to make it clear 
that the first page of the survey shows that the continuation of the wall appears to be at 
25.49 ft. but is a typo. The correct measurement that was scaled out by Planning and 
Zoning Director Heid is 29 ft.  
 
Planning and Zoning Director Heid mentioned that the second condition should be 
amended to read that the hedges be 6 ft. in height to match the height of the wall to 
conceal it. 
 
Board member Calvert requested that the Planning and Zoning Director Heid get the 
printed names of the owners who wrote the letters of support. 
 
Board member Molina moved to approve the variance with the 5 conditions and 
the amended 2nd condition made by Planning and Zoning Director Heid regarding 
the 6 ft. high hedges. Vice Chair Aloma seconded the motion which carried 
unanimously on voice vote. 
 
City Attorney Seiden advised the applicants of the 10 day appeal period. He advised the 
applicants to not spend any funds until after the 10 day appeal period and they have 
gotten the approval from Planning and Zoning Director Heid. 
 
B) Case # 10-V-15 
 ANDREA LOWRY 
 297 POCATELLA STREET 
 Zoning: R-1D 
 Lot Size: 8,127 SQ. FT. 
 
Applicant is seeking setback variances from Section 150-044 to construct a two story 
addition and open porch at an existing residence. 
 
Planning and Zoning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the possibility of turning the steps around that are near the 
kitchen to alleviate the encroachment. 
 
Vice Chair Aloma moved to approve the variance with the conditions made by 
Planning and Zoning Director Heid. Board member Tallman seconded the motion 
which carried unanimously on voice vote. 
 
City Attorney Seiden advised the applicant of the 10 day appeal period. 
 
C)   Case # 11-V-15 
 LIANA LOUGHLIN 
 351 DEER RUN 
 Zoning: R-1A 
 Lot Size: 10,650 SQ. FT. 
 
Applicant is seeking a setback variance from Section 150-041 to construct a carport 
addition to an existence residence. 
 
The applicant requested via email that her variance be postponed to the next 
meeting in September since she recently gave birth and could not attend the 
meeting. By consensus, the Board agreed. 
 
 



 

Minutes – Board of Adjustment  Tuesday, August 4, 2015 3 

D)   Case # 12-V-15 
 MANUEL BONET 
 14 TRUXTON DRIVE 
 Zoning: R-1C 
 Lot Size: 6,350 SQ. FT. 
 
The applicant is seeking a variance from Section 150-034 to place pool equipment 
related to the construction of a new swimming pool at an existing residence in the 
required side yard. 
 
Planning and Zoning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. 
 
Board member Molina moved to approve the variance with the conditions made 
by Planning and Zoning Director Heid. Board member Calvert seconded the 
motion which carried unanimously on voice vote. 
 
City Attorney Seiden advised the applicant of the 10 day appeal period. 
 
 
4) Adjournment 
 
There was no further business to be discussed and the meeting was adjourned at 6:31 
p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted: 

                                           
Elora R. Sakal                                                                        
Board Secretary                                                                          
 
 
Adopted by the Board on                                                         
this       day of             , 2015.                                                  
 
 
                                                      
Manny Perez-Vichot, Chair 
 
 
Words -stricken through- have been deleted.  Underscored words represent changes. 
All other words remain unchanged. 
 
**************************************************************************************************** 
 “The comments, discussions, recommendations and proposed actions of City Citizen 
Advisory Boards do not constitute the policy, position, or prospective action of the City, 
which may only be established and authorized by an appropriate vote or other action of 
the City Council”. 
**************************************************************************************************** 
 



August 6 for July

General Fund Departments Cost Hours

Office of the City Clerk 1,183.95         8.77
Human Resources Department 286.20            2.12
Risk Management 621.00            4.60
Finance Department 811.35            6.01
Professional Services 94.50              0.70
Building,Zoning & Code Enforcement Department 1,262.25         9.35
Planning 831.60            6.16
Police Department 423.90            3.14
Public Works Department 445.50            3.30
Recreation Department 97.20              0.72
IT Department 0.00
Golf 0.00
Senior 0.00
General - Administrative Work 6,166.80         45.68
Sub-total - General Fund $12,224.25 90.55

Special Revenue, Trust & Agency Funds
Golf Course Operations 0.00
L.E.T.F. 0.00
Due from Pension Funds 0.00
Sub-total - Special Funds $0.00 0.00

GRAND TOTAL:  ALL FUNDS $12,224.25 90.55

The City of Miami Springs
     Summary of Monthly Attorney Invoice

Orshan, Lithman, Seiden, Ramos, Hatton & Huesmann, LLP





















































































    

 
 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM:  Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, City Clerk  
 
DATE:  May 20, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: PENDING BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
************************************************************************************************************************************** 
The following appointments are pending: 

 NEW               ORIGINAL   LAST 
APPOINTMENT CURRENT  TERM  APPOINTMENT      APPOINTMENT 
COUNCILMEMBER  MEMBER     EXPIRES     DATE           DATE        
 
Board of Adjustment/Zoning and Planning Board   
Mayor Zavier Garcia Juan Molina  04-30-2015 01-29-2015 01-29-2015 
Vice Mayor Best   Bob Calvert  04-30-2015 01-28-2013 01-28-2013 
Councilman Bain   Ernie Aloma  04-30-2016 04-13-2009 01-11-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Bill Tallman  04-30-2016 01-11-2010 05-14-2012 
Councilman Petralanda  Manuel Pérez-Vichot 04-30-2014 12-14-1998 04-25-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  VACANT  10-31-2015   
 
Architectural Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Marc Scavuzzo*  10-31-2014  08-27-2012 10-08-2012 
Vice Mayor Best   Valentine Soler  10-31-2014  01-14-2013 01-14-2013 
Councilman Bain   Joe Valencia*  10-31-2014  02-27-2012 02-27-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner  Fredy Albiza*  10-31-2014  08-27-2012 11-19-2012 
Councilman Petralanda  Ana Paula Ibarra * 10-31-2014  10-10-2011 10-08-2012 
 
Code Enforcement Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Jorge Filgueira*  11-30-2014  08-27-2012 08-27-2012 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Walter Dworak  09-30-2016  11-14-2005 09-14-2010 
Vice Mayor Best   Marlene B. Jiménez 09-30-2015  03-02-2005 09-24-2012 
Councilman Bain   John Bankston  09-30-2014  09-23-2002 09-10-2012 
Councilman Bain   Rhonda Calvert  09-30-2014  09-25-2006 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner Jacqueline Martinez Regueira 09-30-2015  06-09-2003 11-19-2012   
Councilman Petralanda  Robert (Bob) Williams 09-30-2016  03-10-2008 10-25-2010 
 
Code Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  04-30-2015   
Vice Mayor Best   Maria (Nuñez) Garrett 04-30-2014 05-08-2009 04-23-2012 
Councilman Bain   Arthur Freyre  04-30-2017 05-19-2009 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Dan Dorrego  04-30-2016 08-11-2003 05-24-2010 
Councilman Petralanda  Jana Armstrong  04-30-2016 06-11-2001 05-10-2010 
 
Disability Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  12-31-2016  
Vice Mayor Best   Catherine Stadnik 12-31-2016 12-14-1998 02-14-2011 
Councilman Bain   Grace Bain  12-31-2016 01-13-2014 01-13-2014 
Councilwoman Buckner  Richard Barnes  12-31-2016 05-11-2009 01-24-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Thomas W. Cannon 12-31-2016   
 
 



 
Ecology Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Wendy Anderson Booher*04-30-2015 01-12-2009 04-09-2012 
Vice Mayor Best   Trina Aguila  04-30-2015 10-28-2013 10-28-2013  
Councilman Bain   Carl Malek*  04-30-2017 11-22-2010 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Marielys Acosta  04-30-2016 09-09-2013 09-09-2013 
Councilman Petralanda  Steve Owens  04-30-2016 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
Education Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Alyssa C. Roelans 05-31-2015 02-17-2015 02-17-2015 
Vice Mayor Best   Constantino Hernandez 05-31-2015 04-27-2015 04-27-2015 
Councilman Bain   Dr. Mara Zapata* 05-31-2015 06-13-2011 06-13-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Ilia Molina   05-31-2015 02-05-2015 02-05-2015 
Councilman Petralanda   Kim Werner  05-31-2015 05-13-2013 05-13-2013 
 
Golf and Country Club Advisory Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Michael Domínguez* 07-31-2015 04-12-2010 09-26-2011 
Vice Mayor Best   Mark Safreed  07-30-2015 08-08-2005 06-27-2011 
Councilman Bain   George Heider  07-31-2015 08-13-2001 06-27-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Ken Amendola*  07-31-2015 10-10-2011 10-10-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Art Rabade  07-31-2015 03-11-2013 03-11-2013 
 
Historic Preservation Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Sydney Garton  01-31-2016 11-08-1993 02-08-2010 
Vice Mayor Best   Charles M. Hill  02-28-2015 03-08-2004 03-26-2012 
Councilman Bain   Yvonne Shonberger 02-28-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner  Dr. James Watson 02-28-2015 06-09-2014 06-09-2014 
Councilman Petralanda  Jo Ellen Phillips  01-31-2016 2-14-2013 08-26-2013 
 
Board of Parks & Parkways 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Eric Richey  04-30-2015 02-13-1989 04-09-2012 
Vice Mayor Best   Tammy K. Johnston 04-30-2015 04-27-2006 04-09-2012 
Councilman Bain   Lynne V. Brooks* 04-30-2015 08-08-2011 04-09-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner  Irene Priess  04-30-2017 08-13-2001 04-25-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Lee Fisher  04-30-2017 03-23-2015 03-23-2015   
 
Recreation Commission 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  E. Jorge Santin  04-30-2016 04-14-2008 12-13-2010 
Vice Mayor Best   Mark A. Johnston 04-30-2018 04-22-2013 04-22-2013 
Councilman Bain   Dr. Stephanie Kondy 04-30-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner   VACANT  04-30-2015  
Councilman Petralanda  Alexander Anthony 04-30-2016 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
 * Architectural Review Board 
  Ecology Board - Council confirmation required per §32.40  
  Education Advisory Board - Council confirmation required per §32.99 (A) 
  Board of Parks and Parkways – Council confirmation required per §32.30  
   
  “No Board/Commission member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve 

an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be 
confirmed by a majority of the City Council.” 

 

















1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 –  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS PROVIDING FOR THE FOURTH BUDGET 
AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2014-2015 BUDGET; BY 
RECORDING THE EXPENDITURE FOR THE MIAMI 
SPRINGS POLICE DEPARTMENT INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY UPGRADE IN THE LAW ENFORCEMENT 
TRUST FUND OF THE SPECIAL REVENUE AND CAPITAL 
PROJECTS BUDGET; DIVIDING THE EXPENDITURE FOR A 
NEW BACKHOE BETWEEN THE STORMWATER FUND OF 
THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET AND THE ROAD AND 
TRANSPORTATION FUND OF THE SPECIAL REVENUE 
AND CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET; DELINEATING THE 
EXPENDITURES FOR A GOLF COURSE AWNING, CITY 
ROOF REPLACEMENT PROJECT, AND SUPPLEMENTAL 
FUNDING FOR PROGRAMS FOR SENIOR CITIZENS IN THE 
GOLF COURSE OPERATIONS, PUBLIC WORKS, AND 
TRANSFER FUNDS OF THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET; 
ACKNOWLEDGING THE EXPENDITURES FOR THE GOLF 
COURSE AWNING AND ROOF REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
FROM THE CITY’S DESIGNATED FUND BALANCE AND 
RECORDING THE SUPPLEMENTAL EXPENDITURE FOR 
SENIOR CITIZEN PROGRAMS IN THE SENIOR CENTER 
OPERATIONS FUNDS OF THE SPECIAL REVENUE AND 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND; PROVIDING INTENT; 
SPECIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH BUDGETARY 
PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES; EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City Charter prohibits any City department from incurring expenditures 

in excess of the department’s approved budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Finance Director has recorded the expenditure of $225,000 for 

the recently approved Information Technology Upgrade Project for the Miami Springs Police 
Department in the Law Enforcement Trust Fund of the Special Revenue and Capital Projects 
Budget ; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Finance Director has recorded two expenditures of $22,800 for 

the purchase of a backhoe from the Stormwater Fund of the General Fund Budget and from 
the Road and Transportation Fund of the Special Revenue and Capital Projects Budget; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Finance Director has recorded the expenditure of $6,500 for a 

golf course awning, $22,000 for the City Hall roof replacement  project, and $11,900 for 
supplemental funding for senior citizen programs from the Golf Operations, Public Works, 
and Transfer Funds of the General Fund Budget; and, 

 
WHEREAS, while the aforesaid expenditures from the Golf Operations Fund and the 

Public Works Fund were from previously designated Fund Balance items, the expenditure for 
the Senior Programs were from the City’s undesignated Fund Balance and was recorded in 
the Senior Center Operations Fund of the Special Revenue and Capital Projects Budget; 



2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 

 
Section 1:  That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs hereby approves and 

authorizes the budgetary amendments and appropriations to the various revenues and 
expenditures of the budgets and funds set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 
Section 2:  That the City Council approvals and authorizations evidenced herein are 

intended to provide the City with the means to accomplish the purposes and projects identified 
in the recitals of this Resolution and the Exhibit attached hereto. 

 
Section 3:   That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs has authorized and 

approved the foregoing budgetary amendments, increases and appropriations in order to 
comply with generally accepted budgetary processes and procedures. 

 
Section 4:  That the provisions of this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

adoption by the City Council. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, Florida, 
this    day of   , 2015, on a motion by     and seconded 
by    . 

 
Vice Mayor Best        
Councilman Bain        
Councilwoman Buckner       
Councilman Petralanda       
Mayor Garcia      
  

 
 
             

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 



EXHIBIT "A"

City of Miami Springs
FY 2014-15  Budget Amendment

All Operating Funds

Amended Amendment Amended
Fund/Classification Budget No. 4 Ref Budget

General Fund  
Revenues

Taxes $6,977,607 $6,977,607
Excise Taxes 2,556,000               2,556,000               
Licenses & Permits 974,700                  974,700                  
Intergovernmental Revenues 1,946,297               -                              1,946,297               
Charges for Services 2,292,361               2,292,361               
Fines & Forfeitures 462,682                  462,682                  
Miscellaneous 261,900                  261,900                  
Proceeds from debt 96,949                    -                             -           96,949                    
Fund Balance 44,380                    $40,400  84,780                    

Total General Fund $15,612,876 $40,400 $15,653,276
Expenditures

City Council 150,945 150,945
City Manager 354,311   354,311
City Clerk 310,013   310,013
City Attorney 171,000  171,000
Human Resources 209,474  209,474
Finance-Administration 462,560 462,560
Finance-Professional Services 277,693 277,693
Information Technology 335,516 335,516
Planning 101,698 101,698
Police 6,046,787   6,046,787
Building, Zoning, and Code Enforcement 650,717   650,717
Public Works 1,670,371 22,000 2 1,692,371
Recreation & Culture 2,397,180   2,397,180
Golf Operations 1,739,586 6,500 1 1,746,086
Transfers to other funds 567,154 11,900 5 579,054
Budgeted Increase to reserves 167,871 0  167,871

Total General Fund 15,612,876 40,400 15,653,276

Sanitation Operations 2,346,945   2,346,945

Stormwater Operations 510,368 22,800 4 533,168

Total Enterprise Funds 2,857,313 $22,800 $2,880,113
Special Revenue & Capital Projects

Road & Transportation 578,273 $22,800 4 $601,073

Senior Center Operations 407,362 11,900 5 419,262

Capital Projects 1,185,867   1,185,867

Law Enforcement Trust 142,762 225,000 3 367,762
Total Special Revenue & Capital Projects Funds 2,221,715 $259,700 $2,573,964

      
G.O. Bonds - Series 1997 1,194,445 $1,194,445

Total Debt Service  1,194,445 $1,194,445
GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS $21,886,349 $322,900 $22,301,798

Legend:    
 
 
1) To record $6500 for the golf course awning paid from designated fund balance.
 
2) Use $22,000 of designated fund balance approved by Council for the City Hall roof replacement
 
3) Record a $225,000  IT project approved by Council with Loxia Technology
 
4) Record a $45,600 purchase of backhoe using 50% from CITT and 50% from Stormwater funding.
  
 5) Record $11,900 funding of Tai Chi/Yoga and weekend meals until fiscal year end

 





















Page | 1 

 

BUS SHELTER INSTALLATION, ADVERTISING, AND 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ______ day of August, 

2015 by and between THE CITY OF Miami Springs, with its principal office at 201 

Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida, 33166 (the “CITY”) and SIGNAL 

OUTDOOR ADVERTISING, LLC, a limited liability company with its principal office 

at 200 Mansell Court East, Suite 430, Roswell, Georgia, 30076, (the “COMPANY”). 

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
 WHEREAS, CITY provides bus service throughout the City of Miami 
Springs and its greater suburban community (“Service Area”) and incident to such 
service has bus stops at various locations throughout the Service Area; 
 
 WHEREAS, public transit shelters which provide shelter for those 
individuals using the bus service are located at various bus stops (“Shelters); 
 
 WHEREAS, COMPANY is in the business of installing, repairing and 
maintaining public transit shelters for cities and other municipalities and installing 
advertising displays on the surfaces of such shelters; 
 

WHEREAS, COMPANY is desirous of providing to CITY both new shelters 
and repairing and maintaining existing shelters and displaying advertising thereon; 

 
WHEREAS, CITY desires to engage the services of COMPANY and to 

permit the display of advertising upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set 
forth. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and 

agreements contained herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged by the parties hereto, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1. GRANT OF RIGHTS.  CITY hereby grants to COMPANY the exclusive right 
to erect and install new Shelters throughout the Service Area (the term “Service 
Area” shall include any future expansion of the Service Area), for the Term as 
defined in Paragraph 11, below (“New Shelters”).  CITY also grants to COMPANY 
the exclusive right to retro-fit, repair and maintain all existing Shelters owned by 
the City provided that such retro-fit, repair and maintenance shall occur upon a 
determination by the CITY that such existing Shelter requires said retro-fit, repair 
or maintenance (“Existing Shelters”).  The rights granted to COMPANY herein shall 
include the exclusive right to display advertising material at, on or within all New 



Page | 2 

 

Shelters and Existing Shelters (whether or not such Existing Shelter has been 
selected for retrofit or repair by the CITY) within the Service Area.  Collectively, 
New Shelters and Existing Shelters are referred to herein as “Shelters”. 
 
2. REGULATIONS.  By its execution of this Agreement, CITY expressly 
acknowledges and agrees that the Shelters together with the display of advertising 
on or within the Shelters is a public service and amenity and that this Agreement 
shall serve as specific written notice to the citizens and residents of Miami Springs 
as may be required under any applicable local or state law, ordinance, rule or 
regulation.   
 
3. PAYMENT TO CITY/TERMS.  COMPANY shall pay to CITY a fee equal to 
ten percent (10%) of the advertising receipts generated from the Shelters (“Fee”).  
COMPANY shall submit such payments quarterly together with an accounting of 
the advertising receipts related to such payment.  CITY shall have the right to 
review COMPANY books and records related to such payments upon not less than 
twenty-four (24) hour advance written notice to COMPANY in the corporate office 
of COMPANY. 
 
4. DESIGN OF SHELTERS.  CITY shall approve the design of New Shelters 
prior to commencement of construction by COMPANY.  All New Shelters shall be 
accessible to disabled persons and otherwise materially comply with the 
architectural standards as established by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
2010 (“ADA”), provided however, COMPANY shall not be required to install 
sidewalks or curb cuts to comply with any provision of the ADA.  COMPANY agrees 
that New Shelters shall be constructed in accordance with the Uniform 
Construction Code and be subject to all required municipal inspections.  
COMPANY shall not be responsible for the quality of construction or design of any 
Existing Shelter or ADA compliance therewith. 
 
5. LOCATION OF NEW SHELTERS.  CITY and COMPANY agree that 
COMPANY shall only install New Shelters at locations which are mutually 
acceptable to both CITY and COMPANY. 
 
6. ADVERTISING ON SHELTERS. The advertisements displayed under the 
terms of this Agreement shall be of reputable character, shall conform to 
recognized business standards, and shall not knowingly conflict with the laws of 
the United States, the State of Florida or the CITY. In addition, to wit; 

a)  The COMPANY agrees to remove any advertisement with language, 
design or advertising that the CITY, in its sole and exclusive discretion, deems to 
be immoral, obscene or lascivious.  It is further agreed that if the CITY and the 
COMPANY disagree as to whether the objectionable language, design, or 
advertising is immoral, obscene or lascivious, the judgment of the CITY shall 
prevail, and the COMPANY must abide by the CITY’S demand for removal. 

 



Page | 3 

 

b)   There shall be no advertisement or sign on any bus shelter that shall 
display the words “Stop”, “Look”, “Danger”, or any other word, phrase, symbol or 
character that may interfere with, mislead, or distract traffic. 

 
c)   Political advertising will not be permitted on any shelter.  

 
7. DISTURBANCE.  If CITY shall determine that the location of any Shelter is 
either a safety hazard or otherwise constitutes a problem to CITY, then CITY shall 
notify COMPANY in writing of such hazard or problem and COMPANY shall have 
ten (10) days to correct the problem.  If the problem cannot be rectified, COMPANY 
shall remove the Shelter from its location and, provided CITY approves a 
replacement location that is satisfactory to COMPANY, move such shelter to a new 
location and any fees payable to CITY associated with such shelter shall be abated 
proportionate to the number of days such shelter was not in use as a public transit 
shelter.  Within ten (10) days of receipt of notice from CITY to COMPANY, 
COMPANY shall remove any Shelter which CITY determines interferes in any way 
with the construction, maintenance or repairs of public utilities, public works, or 
public improvements, or which because of its location, in the opinion of CITY, shall 
be deemed to interfere in any way with the normal and orderly flow of vehicular 
traffic.  Nothing stated herein shall require COMPANY to move any Existing Shelter 
for which COMPANY does not then maintain, repair or display advertising. 
 
8. MAINTENANCE.  COMPANY shall maintain all New and Existing Shelters 
together with the advertising displays located therein, in good repair and 
COMPANY shall be solely responsible for the maintenance and repair thereof.  In 
the event COMPANY is notified by CITY of any Shelter that is unclean, requires 
repair or is defaced (offensive, obscene, political graffiti, or otherwise), COMPANY 
shall, within a reasonable amount of time, clean, repair or remove such 
defacement.  If COMPANY fails to repair, remedy or clean the shelter within ten 
(10) working days following such notification by CITY, CITY may clean, repair or 
remove such defacement and COMPANY shall reimburse CITY for the reasonable 
cost thereof. 
 
9. CHRONIC VANDALISM  In the event that any Shelter is vandalized to the 
extent that the cumulative expenses of all repairs exceeds one-half (1/2) of the 
cost of original construction of such Shelter, COMPANY shall have the right to 
remove such vandalized Shelter to another location approved by CITY.   
 
 
10. INDEMNIFICATION/INSURANCE.  COMPANY agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless CITY from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses, 
arising by reason of injury to person or property occasioned directly by the 
negligent act or omission or willful misconduct on the part of COMPANY or any 
employee, agent, independent contractor which if liable will render COMPANY 
responsible or by any reason of any breach or violation of any covenant on the part 
of COMPANY to be observed or performed.  COMPANY shall procure, carry and 



Page | 4 

 

pay for a general liability insurance policy in the amount of $1,000,000 and such 
insurance policy shall name the City of Miami Springs as an additional insured and 
provide no less than thirty (30) days advance written notice of cancellation or non-
renewal of the policy.  COMPANY shall furnish CITY a certificate of insurance 
evidencing such coverage together with a copy of additional insured 
endorsements, if any.  COMPANY shall maintain statutory workers’ compensation 
coverage and unemployment insurance to the extent required by Florida law. 
 
11. TERM.  The initial term of this Agreement shall be for a period of fifteen (15) 
years and shall commence beginning upon execution of this agreement (“Initial 
Term”).  Thereafter, provided that COMPANY is not in default of the terms of this 
Agreement, or has commenced to cure any such default, this Agreement may be 
renewed for an additional five (5) year term upon the same terms and conditions 
set forth herein (collectively with the Initial Term, the “Term”). 
 
12. DEFAULT.  Upon an event of default by either CITY or COMPANY, the 
party alleging the default (the “Non-defaulting Party”) shall provide notice to the 
party in default (the “Defaulting Party”) of the nature and extent of such default.  
Unless such default has been cured, or a cure commenced, by the Defaulting Party 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of said notice, this Agreement shall terminate and 
the parties shall have no further obligations hereunder.  Provided however, in the 
event that COMPANY is the Defaulting Party and such default has not been cured 
as provided for herein, COMPANY shall have the right to sell or assign its interest 
under this Agreement and upon such written notice to CITY, which notice shall be 
delivered prior to the end of the cure period set forth above, COMPANY shall have 
ninety (90) days to enter into a binding agreement with a third party to sell or assign 
such interest and thereafter, COMPANY shall convey such interest within ninety 
(90) days of the date of entering into such binding agreement.  No further consent 
or approval of CITY shall be required to such sale or assignment, however, CITY 
agrees to execute an assignment agreement, if so requested by COMPANY, 
consenting to the assignment by COMPANY and assumption by such third party 
of all of COMPANY’s rights and obligations under this Agreement.   
 
13.  EXPIRATION.  Upon the expiration of the Term, 
 

(a) if City has determined to no longer permit advertising on surfaces of 
public transit shelters, COMPANY shall then transfer all of its right, title and interest 
in and to the New Shelters to CITY and neither CITY nor COMPANY shall have 
any further rights or obligations under this Agreement; or 

 
(b) in the event that CITY decides to continue to permit the display of 

advertising on surfaces of the public transit shelters, CITY shall commence good 
faith negotiations with COMPANY to renew this Agreement on mutually acceptable 
terms.  If no renewal agreement is reached upon the expiration of this Agreement 
(the “Negotiation Period”), then in such event COMPANY shall have the right to 



Page | 5 

 

remove all of the New Shelters and retro fitted ad boxes, and neither CITY nor 
COMPANY shall have any further rights or obligations under this Agreement.   

 
14.  EXUSABLE DEFAULT.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this 
Agreement, COMPANY shall not be held in default of this Agreement, if 
COMPANY is prevented from performing hereunder by inability to acquire 
necessary materials, acts of God or inability to reach agreement with utility 
companies. 
 
15.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
 

(a) Arbitration.  Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this 
contract, or the breach thereof, shall be settled by arbitration in 
accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association, and 
judgment upon the award rendered by arbitrator(s) may be entered in 
any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

(b) Mailing of Notices.  For purposes of notice, the addresses for CITY and 
COMPANY designated on the first page of this Agreement shall be the 
place where all notices provided for under this Agreement shall be sent. 

(c) Assignment.  Except as provided for in Paragraph 12, above, any sale 
or assignment by COMPANY of its interest under this Agreement shall 
require the written approval of CITY, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed, and CITY further agrees to provide 
such consent upon a demonstration that such successor in interest to 
COMPANY shall have the ability to perform all of COMPANY’s 
obligations under the terms of this Agreement. 

(d) Entire Agreement.  The parties hereto, in the performance of this 
Agreement, agree to comply with all applicable state and federal laws 
and local ordinances.  This Agreement contains all the terms and 
conditions agreed upon by the parties hereto and no other agreement, 
oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter shall be deemed to exist 
or bind either of the parties hereto.  Moreover, this Agreement may not 
be modified except in writing by both parties and if required by law. 

(e) Law Controlling.  It is the understanding of the parties that this 
Agreement shall be controlled by the laws of the State of Florida. 

(f) Prohibited Interests.  No member, officer, or employee of CITY or a CITY 
agency, board or department shall, during their tenure or term of 
employment and for one (1) year thereafter, have any interest, direct or 
indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof. 

(g) Equal Employment Opportunity.  During the performance of this 
Agreement, COMPANY shall not discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, age, sex or 
national origin.  COMPANY will take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, religion, color, sex or national 
origin. 



Page | 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

{the next page is the signature page} 
  



Page | 7 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the 
parties hereto set forth their hands and seal the date set forth above. 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF Miami Springs, FL 
 
 
______________________________ By:___________________________ 
Name (print): ___________________ Name: ________________________ 
      Title: _________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: SIGNAL OUTDOOR ADVERTISING, LLC  
 
 
______________________________ By:____________________________ 
Name (print):___________________ Name: James A. Mclaughlin 
      Title: Chief Executive Officer 






































































































































	Agenda Summary - August 10, 2015
	Agenda Summary p. 2
	Agenda Summary p. 3

	3C Little Lightning Softball Team 
	5A Minutes - June 22, 2015 
	5B Minutes - July 30, 2015 Special Meeting 
	6A Board of Adjustment Minutes - August 4, 2015 
	8A City Attorney July Invoice 
	8B Approval of MSPD Rental Car Program 
	8C Approval of Expenditure to Atkins for Stormwater Project 
	8D Approval of Expenditure to Metro Express for Stormwater Project 
	8E Approval of Award of Bid to Greater Miami Caterers 
	8F Approval of Award of Bid to  First Vehicle Services
	8G Approval of PO to Harrell's  
	9A Appointments to Advisory Boards 
	9B Authorize Change Order to Z Roofing 
	10A Resolution - Fourth Budget Amendment to FY14/15 Budget 
	10B Approval of Expenditure to Superior Park System for Tennis Courts 
	10C  Consideration of Permitted Uses
	10D Approval of Bus Shelter Agreement with Signal Outdoor Advertising
	10E Approval of Award of Bid to Neighborhood Health Partners for Medical Ins.
	10F Request by Optimist Club for BBQ Blast Event
	11A 3rd Quarter Budget Status Report

